
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

    

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
 

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, August 16, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 August 9, 2016 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

      

Commissioners  
a. Step Increase Request Authorization 

Facilities  

b. Contract w/Superior Maintenance Solutions, LLC for Landscape and Maintenance    

GIS 

c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 131   

Human Services   
d. Amendment #2 w/DSHS for Developmental Disabilities Services   

Juvenile  

e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Depts. 171, 173 & 174 

Office of Public Defense 

f. Indigent Defense Compensation Services for A Rado   

Public Works  

g. Authorization to Proceed With Bid Process for Pavement Marking 2016   

h. Contract Extension w/Coleman Oil Company for Card Lock Services for Gasoline & Diesel   

Sheriff  

i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120   

j. Agreement w/WA State Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force Through City of 

Seattle Police Department 

k. Amending Resolution 2014-959 for Procurement of Employee Uniforms From Gall’s LLC 

l. Letter to Universal Protection Service for Unarmed Security Guard Services 

Treasurer 

m. Issuance of a County Road Improvement District No. 21 Bond  

 

Public Hearing 

Budget Adjustment to Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 115 ~ L Smith Kelty 

 

Budget Adjustment to Fund No. 0155-101, Dept. 000 ~ M Rasmussen  

 

 

 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

August 16, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Scheduled Business 

Social Media Strategy ~ S Faulconer  

 

Request for Approval to Use 2163 Funds for Kennewick Housing Authority Nueva Vista Project 

~ K Sullivan 

 

Agreement Modification w/United States Marshals Service for Housing Federal Detainees           

~ J Law  

 

Mental Health Addition Discussion ~ Sheriff Keane & Undersheriff Hatcher  

 

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business   
 

 

     

 

 

  

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, August 9, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Absent: Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; Planning Manager Mike 

Shuttleworth; Auditor Brenda Chilton; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki 

Lahtinen; RJ Lott, Planning; Treasurer Duane Davidson.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of August 2, 2016 were approved.   

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “p”.  

Chairman Small seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Commissioners  
a. Rescinding Resolution 2015-655, Interlocal Agreement MATRICS for Multi-Agency 

Three Rivers Information & Communication Systems  

District Court  

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111   

Facilities  

c. Purchase Authorization for Services to Treat Carpenter Ants from Rose Hart Pest Control 

d. Contract w/Allied Systems Products for Purchase & Installation of a Compact File Storage 

System  

Human Services   
e. Contract w/WA St Department of Commerce for Community Development Block Grant 

f. Grant Agreement w/Elijah Family Homes for Housing Subsidies  

Juvenile  

g. Contract w/Apollo Heating & Air for HVAC System Maintenance  



 - 2 - 

Office of Public Defense 

h. Superior Court Public Defense Service Agreement w/R Swinburson  

i. Amended Caseload District Court Public Defense Contract w/A Farabee  

Public Safety  

j. Agreement w/Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties for Prosser Teen 

Program Investment  

k. Purchase Authorization for Seven (7) Smith and Wesson M&P15 Rifles for Sheriff’s 

Office  

Public Works  

l. Memorandum of Understanding w/State of WA DNR Public Land Survey for  

Permit/Covered Monuments  

m. Traffic Control on County Roads re Speed Limit – Summit View  

n. Traffic Control on County Roads re Speed Limit – Bent Road  

o. Contract with B.C.V., Inc. for Hank Road Asphalt Repair & CR12 Pathway Asphalt Repair 

Project  

Sheriff  

p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120  

 

Final Plat of the Altered Plat of Tripple Vista Estates No. 2; SUB 2016-001 

 

RJ Lott said all the conditions of approval were satisfied and all signatures obtained.  He 

recommended the Board authorize the Chairman to sign the final plat as presented.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the Altered Plat of Tripple Vista Estates No. 

2 and authorize the Chairman to sign the final plat.  Chairman Small seconded and upon vote, the 

motion carried.   

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

 

Hanford Communities 

 

Adam Fyall said that Donovan Robinson, Whitehouse Office of Management & Budget would 

be in town next week, and he wanted to work with the City of Richland and other folks to set up 

a meeting with Mr. Robinson to discuss the importance of PILT.  The Board agreed to have Mr. 

Fyall work on setting up that meeting.   

 

Vouchers 

 

Check Date: 08/05/2016 

 

Payroll Checks 

Warrant #: 239807-239882 

Direct Deposit # 116151-116750 

Total all funds: $2,168,682.82 

 

 



 - 3 - 

Payroll Deductions/Transfers 

Taxes # 101160801-101160815 

Total all funds:  $1,896,006.53 

 

Payroll Deductions/Warrants 

Warrant #: 143347-143360 

Total all funds:  $378,976.26 

 

Transfers #: 08051601-08051604 

Transfers #: 08051607-08051609 

Total all funds: $317,728.46 

 

Warrant #: 143253-143346 

Total all funds:  $872,536.31 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2016-599: Rescinding Resolution 2015-655, Interlocal Agreement MATRICS for Multi-

Agency Three Rivers Information & Communication Systems  

2016-600: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111   

2016-601: Purchase Authorization for Services to Treat Carpenter Ants from Rose Hart Pest 

Control 

2016-602: Contract w/Allied Systems Products for Purchase & Installation of a Compact File 

Storage System  

2016-603: Contract w/WA St Department of Commerce for Community Development Block 

Grant 

2016-604: Grant Agreement w/Elijah Family Homes for Housing Subsidies  

2016-605: Contract w/Apollo Heating & Air for HVAC System Maintenance  

2016-606: Superior Court Public Defense Service Agreement w/R Swinburson  

2016-607: Amended Caseload District Court Public Defense Contract w/A Farabee  

2016-608: Agreement w/Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties for Prosser Teen 

Program Investment  

2016-609: Purchase Authorization for Seven (7) Smith and Wesson M&P15 Rifles for 

Sheriff’s Office  

2016-610: Memorandum of Understanding w/State of WA DNR Public Land Survey for  

Permit/Covered Monuments  

2016-611: Traffic Control on County Roads re Speed Limit – Summit View  

2016-612: Traffic Control on County Roads re Speed Limit – Bent Road  

2016-613: Contract with B.C.V., Inc. for Hank Road Asphalt Repair & CR12 Pathway Asphalt 

Repair Project  

2016-614: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120  

2016-615: Approval of Final Plat – Altered Plat of Tripple Vista Estates No. 2 – SA 2016-001 

 

 



 - 4 - 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:05 

a.m.   

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



WEH
Text Box
a. Step Increase Request Authorization



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 8-16-16        
Subject: Contract award for 

SMS  
Prepared by:       D. Waggoner  
Reviewed by:       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X___ 
Pass Resolution  __X___  
Pass Ordinance  ______  
Pass Motion  ______  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda           __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
 
While the Facilities Department has been responsible for Landscape and Lawn Maintenance for many 
years, it was determined that this is not the best use of personnel.  Using a professional service will allow 
Facilities to better utilize its resources, and to draw on the expertise of a contractor.  This will help Benton 
County present its best image to visitors and employees of our facilities. 
 
Benton County Facilities solicited quotes from the MRSC Small Works Roster for Landscape and Lawn 
Maintenance Services.  Two vendors provided quotes as listed below: 
 
 
 Superior Maintenance Solutions –  Lynwood, WA. –  $100,386.00, not including WSST 
 Heritage Landscaping. –    Richland, WA. – $113,904.00, not including WSST 
 
Services will be provided at 7 different locations including: Benton County Justice Center Complex, 
Kennewick Annex, Animal Control, Prosser Courthouse, Prosser Planning building, Courthouse parking 
area, and Vista Park in Kennewick. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Contract between Benton County and Superior Maintenance 
Solutions, Inc. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Total cost not to exceed $100,000, including WSST and fees.  Funding source will be Current Expense of 
the Facilities budget. 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the attached Public Works contract between Benton County and Superior Maintenance 
Solutions, Inc. 
  
 

WEH
Text Box
b. Contract w/Superior Maintenance Solutions, LLC for Landscape and Maintenance



 RESOLUTION 
  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF EXECUTING A PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON 
COUNTY AND SUPERIOR MAINTENANCE SOLUTIONS, INC FOR LANDSCAPE AND 
LAWN MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, the Facilities Department has determined that using a contractor to perform landscape 
and lawn maintenance service will be a great benefit to the County; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Facilities Department has many locations to service and a contractor can perform 
this more efficiently, thus freeing up one Maintenance Worker to accomplish other much needed 
work; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County can rely on the expertise of the contractor to accomplish landscape and 
lawn maintenance needs and present the best image possible; and 
 
WHEREAS, quotes were requested from the MRSC Small Works Roster and responses were 
received from Heritage Landscaping, and Superior Maintenance Solutions, and the lowest price was 
submitted by Superior Maintenance Solutions in the amount of $100,386.00, not including WSST; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the quote assumed 26 weekly visits in 2017 and 32 in 2018 but 2017 will only be 
approximately 16 weekly visits, thereby reducing the overall contract amount; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Facilities Manager recommends authorizing a Public Works contract between 
Benton County and Superior Maintenance Solutions to provide Landscape and Lawn Maintenance 
services to various Benton County locations; NOW THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
the Board hereby approves the Public Works contract with Superior Maintenance Solutions, in the 
amount not to exceed $100,000 including WSST; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board authorizes the Chairman to sign the agreement attached 
hereto. 
 
 
Dated this  __________________ day of ___________________ , 2016. 
 
 
                                   ______ ___                
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
                                   ______ ___                
 Member 
 
 
                                   ______ ___                
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

         Clerk of the Board 









































This is a prevailing wage job.  Do not include any charges for prevailing wage intent and affidavit forms filed with
Washington State Dept. of Labor & Industries.  Benton County agrees to reimburse the contractor actual expenses incurred for any 
prevailing wage filing fees.

CONTRACTOR NAME & 
ADDRESS/CONTACT PERSON PHONE  CONTRACTOR 

LICENSE# EMAIL 

Benton County Facilities 
7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 

Kennewick, WA  99336 
509-222-3704;  509-736-2708 (fax) 
dan.waggoner@co.benton.wa.us 

LOCATION/DESCRIPTION 

Please provide a quote :
Dan Waggoner 

Benton County Facilities 
7122 W. Okanogan Pl 
Kennewick, WA 99336 

Office: 509-222-3704 
Fax:     509-736-2708 
dan.waggoner@co.benton.wa.us 

Requirements: 

Contractor shall be responsible for necessary tools
and equipment to perform the .

$0.00 $0.00













This is a prevailing wage job.  Do not include any charges for prevailing wage intent and affidavit forms filed with
Washington State Dept. of Labor & Industries.  Benton County agrees to reimburse the contractor actual expenses incurred for any 
prevailing wage filing fees.

CONTRACTOR NAME & 
ADDRESS/CONTACT PERSON PHONE  CONTRACTOR 

LICENSE# EMAIL 

Benton County Facilities 
7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 

Kennewick, WA  99336 
509-222-3704;  509-736-2708 (fax) 
dan.waggoner@co.benton.wa.us 

LOCATION/DESCRIPTION 

Please provide a quote :
Dan Waggoner 

Benton County Facilities 
7122 W. Okanogan Pl 
Kennewick, WA 99336 

Office: 509-222-3704 
Fax:     509-736-2708 
dan.waggoner@co.benton.wa.us 

Requirements: 

Contractor shall be responsible for necessary tools
and equipment to perform the .

$0.00 $0.00













ADDENDUM TO RFP DOCUMENTS 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: 2016/2017 LANDSCAPE AND LAWN MAINTENANCE 

ADDENDUM No.  1 

DATE:    4/28/16 

 

To All Potential Bidders: 

This addendum is to clarify some questions on the original RFP.  This also adds 3 areas of lawn that 

services are requested at. 

Questions and Answers 

Q1.  What is the expected number of site visits per year at each service location? 

A1.  The expectation is for one site visit per week during the lawn growing/mowing season.  This is 

considered to be approximately mid-March through mid-November, or 8 months, or 32 weeks.  Site 

visits for application of fertilizer or weed control before or after the mowing season is at the discretion 

and expertise of the service company. 

 

Q2.  Are background checks require for the employees performing the work? 

A2.  There are 2 areas in the Justice Center at 7122 W. Okanogan Pl in Kennewick that will require those 

employees to have passed a background check.  Those areas are the inner courtyard within the Courts 

building, and the Courtyard between the Jail and Sheriff’s Office. 

 

Q3.  Can you confirm the Prevailing Wage rates for Benton County? 

A3.  This is taken from the LNI website: 

County  Trade  Job Classification  Wage 

Benton Landscape Construction Irrigation Or Lawn Sprinkler Installers $10.13  

Benton Landscape Construction Landscape Equipment Operators Or Truck Drivers $20.17  

Benton Landscape Construction Landscaping Or Planting Laborers $13.56  

    

Q4.  Is the returned RFP sheet sufficient for a response? 

A4.  Yes.  The RFP is a fillable PDF document.  Once it is filled out, save a copy, and email, mail or fax that 

back to the address listed. 

 



Additional Areas for Requested Services 

 

There are 3 additional service locations that the County would like to have landscaping services at.  2 of 

them are in Prosser, WA, in close proximity to the Benton County Courthouse.  The 3rd area is in 

Kennewick, close to the Kennewick Annex site. 

Additional Area #1:  Benton County Planning Building at 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser, WA.  This building 

has grass areas on 3 sides of the building. 

Additional Area #2:  This is South of the Courthouse, across Prosser Avenue.  This is a parking lot with 

grass strips around the outside of the parking areas. 

Additional Area #3:  This is Vista Park in Kennewick, located at 5520 W. Umatilla Avenue.  The grass in 

this area will be improved later this year but the area size will remain the same.  There some large trees, 

along with some shrubbery. 

Thank you, 

Dan Waggoner 

Benton County Facilities Manager 

509-222-3704 

dan.waggoner@co.benton.wa.us 

 

See pictures below of the 3 areas:

 



 

 



 

 



 



 

 





Revised 07/16 
 

 

 
BENTON COUNTY BACKGROUND CHECK 

AUTHORIZATION AND RELEASE 
 

 
 
 
Last Name   First Name   Middle Name    Sex: M   F 

 
     
All Other Previous Names Used      Date of Birth 

 
 
Driver’s License Number/State      Social Security Number 

 
 
Primary Phone number       Alternate Phone number   Email address 

 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
A background check is required of all Benton County employees and volunteers, as well as contractors 
assigned to work in secure areas and for individuals needing jail access.  Successful completion of the 
background check, as determined by Benton County, is required prior to the first day of work or entry into the 
jail.  If you are visiting the Benton County Jail for business and discover that a friend or family member is in 
custody you must immediately notify jail staff.  Jail access will be for official business only. No personal 
business is authorized. I understand that employment, jail access or volunteer status with Benton County is 
contingent upon the results of a background check.  I understand that adverse findings during my background 
check may result in denied jail access, withdrawal of any offer of employment/assignment with Benton County, 
and/or termination of my employment/assignment with Benton County.  I further understand that if I am found to 
have made any false or misleading statements in my application or background check materials, I may be 
denied access or have my employment/volunteer status terminated even after I have started work, and may 
subject myself to criminal prosecution. 
 
AUTHORIZATION AND RELEASE 
I hereby authorize Benton County (including but not limited to Personnel Resources Department, Sheriff’s 
Office, Juvenile Justice Center, and/or Prosecutor’s Office personnel) to conduct a background check in 
connection with my application for jail access and/or employment/assignment with Benton County.  I 
understand that this background check may include, but is not limited to, a review of records on file with the 
Washington State Patrol, the FBI National Crime Information Computer (NCIC) and Interstate Identification 
Index (III), local law enforcement agencies, the Department of Licensing, courts of law, and other agencies, and 
also may, depending on my employment or assignment, involve fingerprinting.  I understand that a more 
comprehensive background check is required for certain Benton County positions and may include review of 
records relating to arrests and/or other contacts with law enforcement. 
 
I hereby authorize and request any person, government entity, law enforcement or criminal justice agency, 
and/or other organization (public or private) to provide any information and/or records solicited by Benton 
County in connection with my application for jail access and/or work with Benton County.  I hereby release 
those persons and entities, and Benton County, its elected officials, judges, directors, appointees, managers, 
employees, volunteers, agents, and assigns, from any and all liability that may result from providing and/or 
soliciting such information and/or records.  A facsimile copy or photocopy of this waiver shall have the same 
force and effect as a copy with my original signature. 
 

 I am a  <circle all that apply>        Contractor          Volunteer    

Location to obtain access <circle all that apply>      BC Jail      BC Justice Center 

Your Company/Organization Name:  

Your Position Title:  



Revised 07/16 
 

 

 
 
ADVERSE HISTORY INFORMATION 
The following information pertains to all incidents, whether under Washington State law, the law of another 
State, or federal law.  If you answer “yes” to any question, please provide details including the date, 
location/jurisdiction, case number, charge if applicable, and arresting agency if applicable. 
 
 
 Have you ever been convicted of, or are you currently charged with, any crime (this includes adjudications 

as a juvenile unless expunged or vacated)?   
 
 
 Have you ever been found by way of any judicial, administrative, or employer process or investigation to 

have committed sexual harassment or to have engaged in any other forcible or nonconsensual sexual 
conduct? 

 
 
 Have you ever been terminated from employment or a previous position (including volunteer positions), or 

permitted to resign in lieu of termination? 
 
 

 If answered yes, please describe the circumstances surrounding the incident. 
 
 
 If requesting access to the jail, do you currently have any family members or friends in custody at the 

Benton County Jail?  If so, who is in jail and what is their relationship to you? 
 
 
 
 
CONTINUING NATURE OF ADVERSE HISTORY INFORMATION 
I understand that during all times I have jail access, am employed by, or have volunteer status with, Benton 
County, that I am required to inform my immediate supervisor or jail staff any time I am charged with or 
convicted of any crime, and any time I am named as a defendant/respondent in any lawsuit or complaint 
alleging sexual harassment or other forcible or nonconsensual sexual conduct.  I understand that failure to 
make such notification within one business day of such action, excluding any time I am incarcerated or 
otherwise incapable of making such notification, shall be grounds for denied access into the jail and/or  
immediate termination of my employment or volunteer status with Benton County.  
 
POTENTIAL DISQUALIFIERS 
 

 Felony convictions within the past five (5) years 
 Violent misdemeanors or domestic violence convictions within the past five (5) years 
 Drug related convictions within the past five (5) years 

 
Some exemptions may apply on a case by case basis. 
 

I have read, fully understand, and voluntarily provide this Authorization and Release.  By 
signing below, I also certify, under penalty of perjury as provided by the laws of the 
State of Washington, that I am the person identified above, and that all of the 
biographical, adverse history, and other information provided above is true, correct, and 
complete to the best of my knowledge. 
 
 
_________________________________    ________________________________ 
Signature       Date 

 
A minimum of two business days required for processing. 

Do Not Write Below This Line 

 
Comments:        COMPLETED BY AND DATE: 
 
 
 
 



This is a prevailing wage job.  Do not include any charges for prevailing wage intent and affidavit forms filed with
Washington State Dept. of Labor & Industries.  Benton County agrees to reimburse the contractor actual expenses incurred for any 
prevailing wage filing fees.

CONTRACTOR NAME & 

ADDRESS/CONTACT PERSON 
PHONE 

 CONTRACTOR 

LICENSE# 
EMAIL 

Benton County Facilities 
7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 

Kennewick, WA  99336 
509-222-3704;  509-736-2708 (fax) 
dan.waggoner@co.benton.wa.us 

LOCATION/DESCRIPTION 

Please provide a quote :

Dan Waggoner 

Benton County Facilities 
7122 W. Okanogan Pl 
Kennewick, WA 99336 

Office: 509-222-3704 
Fax:     509-736-2708 
dan.waggoner@co.benton.wa.us 

Requirements: 

· Contractor shall be responsible for necessary tools

and equipment to perform the .

·

� � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � 
 	 
 � � � �  � � � � 
 �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � 
 
 � � � � � � � � � � � �� 	 �  	 
 � �  ! � � � � � " # # $ % & % $ % % & " ' ( ' ' ) ( ' " % * + , - . / 0 1 2 0 / / 3 / 4 5 $ 6 $ 5 $ 5 0 7 8 39 0 5 1 9 : 6; < < = > > ? @ ? ? ; < > = A < B @ ? ?; < = C B ? @ ? ? ; A = D < E @ ? ?; D = < E ? @ ? ? ; F = A A F @ ? ?; > = B B ? @ ? ? ; E = C < E @ ? ?; A E = B A ? @ ? ? ; B F = G G F @ ? ?



This is a prevailing wage job.  Do not include any charges for prevailing wage intent and affidavit forms filed with Washington State 
Dept. of Labor & Industries.  Benton County agrees to reimburse the contractor actual expenses incurred for any prevailing wage 
filing fees.

CONTRACTOR NAME & 

ADDRESS/CONTACT PERSON 
PHONE 

 CONTRACTOR 

LICENSE# 
EMAIL 

Benton County Facilities 
7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 

Kennewick, WA  99336 
509-222-3704;  509-736-2708 (fax) 
dan.waggoner@co.benton.wa.us 

LOCATION/DESCRIPTION 

Please provide a quote :

Dan Waggoner 

Benton County Facilities 
7122 W. Okanogan Pl 
Kennewick, WA 99336 

Office: 509-222-3704 
Fax:     509-736-2708 
dan.waggoner@co.benton.wa.us 

Requirements: 

· Contractor shall be responsible for necessary tools

and equipment to perform the .

·

� � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 
 � � 
 	 
 � � � �  � � � � 
 �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � 
 
 � � � � � � � � � � � �� 	 �  	 
 � �  ! � � � � � " # # $ % & % $ % % & " ' ( ' ' ) ( ' " % * + , - . / 0 1 2 0 / / 3 / 4 5 $ 6 $ 5 $ 5 0 7 8 39 0 5 1 9 : 6; < = > ? ? @ ? ? ; < = A A ? @ ? ?; < = > ? ? @ ? ? ; < = A A ? @ ? ?; A = B ? ? @ ? ? ; C = D E ? @ ? ?
; D = > ? ? @ ? ? ; B = E A ? @ ? ?



 
 

Landscape and Lawn Maintenance Services for Benton County Locations Preformed by SMS 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

SCOPE OF WORK: 

All Sites to include: 

32 Site Visits Per Year  

Irrigation Start Up, Maintenance and Winterization where applicable 

2x Annual Cleanup equal to two additional site visits outlining scope of work for each site 

below 

 Benton County Planning Building 1002 Dudley Ave, Prosser, WA 

o Mowing, Edging, Fertilizing, Weed Control and Cleanup of Sidewalks and Hard 

Surfaces 

 Courthouse Parking ( Across from Prosser Ave / Courthouse ) 

 

o Mowing, Edging, Fertilizing, Weed Control and Cleanup of Sidewalks and Hard 

Surfaces 

 

o Trimming as Needed for anything less than 15 feet above ground 

 

 Vista Park 5520 West Umatilla Ave, Kennewick, WA 

o Mowing, Edging, Fertilizing, Weed Control and Cleanup of Sidewalks and Hard 

Surfaces 

o Trimming as Needed for anything less than 15 feet above ground 

 

 Benton County Courthouse 620 Market St, Prosser, WA  

 

o Mowing, Edging, Fertilizing, Weed Control and Cleanup of Sidewalks and Hard 

Surfaces 

o Trimming as Needed for anything less than 15 feet above ground 

o Flowerbed maintenance, litter control, fertilizer, weed control, pre-emergent 

and spot control of weeds 

 

 



 
 

Landscape and Lawn Maintenance Services for Benton County Locations Preformed by SMS 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

 Benton County Animal Control 1116 N. Grant Place, Kennewick, WA 

o Mowing, Edging, Fertilizing, Weed Control and Cleanup of Sidewalks and Hard 

Surfaces 

o Trimming as Needed for anything less than 15 feet above ground 

o Flowerbed maintenance, litter control, fertilizer, weed control, pre-emergent 

and spot control of weeds 

 

 Kennewick Annex Building 5600 West Canal Drive, Kennewick, WA 

 

o Mowing, Edging, Fertilizing, Weed Control and Cleanup of Sidewalks and Hard 

Surfaces 

o Flowerbed maintenance, litter control, fertilizer, weed control, pre-emergent 

and spot control of weeds 

o Trimming as Needed for anything less than 15 feet above ground 

 

 Benton County Justice Center Complex 7122,7110 and 7102 West Okanogan PL, 

Kennewick, WA 

 

o Mowing, Edging, Fertilizing, Weed Control and Cleanup of Sidewalks and Hard 

Surfaces 

o Flowerbed maintenance, litter control, fertilizer, weed control, pre-emergent 

and spot control of weeds 

o Trimming as Needed for anything less than 15 feet above ground 

 

 

 

 



Monday, June 27, 2016 

Weekly Costs for Landscape and Lawn Maintenance Services from Superior Maintenance Solutions 

This sheet provides calculations for the weekly cost of services at each service location.  This cost was 
based on the amount provided by Nate Pettit for 2017.  This annual amount is divided 32 to get the 
weekly amount.  Work is based on 32 visits per year.  This calculation was also used to approximate the 
costs for 2016. 

                Location   Annual   Weekly 

Benton County Justice Center  $27,324.00  $853.86 

Kennewick Annex   $3,528.00  $110.25 

Animal Control    $6,336.00  $198.00 

Prosser Courthouse   $8,928.00  $279.00 

Planning Annex    $1,440.00  $45.00 

Courthouse Parking   $1,440.00  $45.00 

Vista Park    $5,760.00  $180.00 

 

This sheet will be used as a reference if additional maintenance services are requested by Benton 
County, to be performed by SMS. 

Dan Waggoner 
Benton County Facilities Manager 

 



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: M Phillips, Auditor, L Kelty Phillips

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 131

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 131





WEH
Text Box
d. Amendment #2 w/DSHS for Developmental Disabilities Services













Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor Prepared by: J. Bowe

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Clerk of the Board

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

OPERATIONS, FEE FOR SERVICE, GRANTS FUND NUMBER 0115101,

DEPARTMENT NUMBER 171, 173 & 174

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto .

Chairman of the Board

Member

WEH
Text Box
e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Depts. 171, 173 & 174



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept TRANSFER TO:  Dept 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

173.527.400 4696 Workman's Comp. $3,505 171.527.100 4696 Workman's Comp. $77,978

174.527.400 4696 Workman's Comp. $977 171.527.100 4697 Insurance Management $28,035

171.527.100 4101 Legal Services $102,288 173.527.400 4697 Insurance Management $757

TOTAL $106,770 TOTAL $106,770

Explanation:  

Prepared by: Jennifer Bowe Date:  04-Aug-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Line item transfer necessary to cover costs of the 2015-2016 Workman's Comp. and Insurance Management assessments. Inaccurate 2015/2016

budget appropriations were provided during budget approval and adoption.

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Juvenile Center 171, 173 & 174

Operations, Fee for Service, Grants 0115101



WEH
Text Box
f. Indigent Defense Compensation Services for A Rado







WEH
Text Box
g. Authorization to Proceed With Bid Process for Pavement Marking 2016















































































































































































































WEH
Text Box
h. Contract Extension w/Coleman Oil Company for Card Lock Services for Gasoline & Diesel





WEH
Text Box
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: August 16, 2016    
Subject: Interagency Agreement 

Addendum w/ Seattle 
Police Dept.  

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  
   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
  
Per Resolution 2016-556 dated July 12, 2016, the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved the 
interagency agreement between the Washington State Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force acting through 
the City of Seattle Policy Department and Benton County, by and for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office, and 
authorized the Benton County Sheriff to sign said agreement.  
 
The Seattle Police Department provided the Sheriff’s Office with the attached addendums to clarify language in the 
WA ICAC TF Interagency Agreement found in Article II – OPERATIONAL STANDARDS and Article XII – 
EFFECTIVE DATE, as further outline in the attached addendums.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and attached Addendums clarifying language in the original agreement.  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
N/A 
 
 
MOTION 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
j. Agreement w/WA State Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force Through City of Seattle Police Department



Orig: Sheriff’s Office  
CC:   Auditor; PA’s Office; SPD                                                                                                               Prepared by:  L. Small 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT ADDENDUM BETWEEN THE 
WASHINGTON STATE INTERNET CRIMES AGAINST CHILDREN TASK FORCE ACTING 
THROUGH THE CITY OF SEATTLE POLICE DEPARTMENT AND BENTON COUNTY, BY 
AND FOR THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-556 dated July 12, 2016, the Board of Benton County Commissioners 
approved the interagency agreement between the Washington State Internet Crimes Against Children Task 
Force acting through the City of Seattle Policy Department and Benton County, by and for the Benton 
County Sheriff’s Office, and authorized the Benton County Sheriff to sign said agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Seattle Police Department provided the Sheriff’s Office with the attached addendums to 
clarify language in the WA ICAC TF Interagency Agreement found in Article II – OPERATIONAL 
STANDARDS and Article XII – EFFECTIVE DATE,  as further outline in the attached addendums;    
NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, hereby 
acknowledges and approves the attached addendums clarifying language in the WA ICAC TF Interagency 
Agreement found in Article II – OPERATIONAL STANDARDS and Article XII – EFFECTIVE DATE, 
as further outline in the attached addendums.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached addendums will be attached to the original agreement as an 
addendum.  
 
 
Dated this _________day of ___________________, 2016.   
 
    

______________________________ 
                            Chairman of the Board 

 
       ______________________________   

          Member 
 

       ______________________________   
          Member 

       Constituting the Board of County Commissioners   
of Benton County, Washington 

Attest:   _______________________               
                      Clerk of the Board 







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Aug. 16, 2016       
Subject: Resolution Amendment  
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: R. Lukson  
                        Loretta Smith Kelty  
   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___ _ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2014-959 the Board of Benton County Commissioners awarded the purchase agreement 
for the procurement of employee uniforms – Class A and other related items to Gall’s LLC for a two year 
contract with a Board authorized amount not to exceed $70,000 including WSST.  
 
This $70,000 not to exceed amount was just an estimate of what we believe would be spent on Class A 
uniforms and equipment within the two year period.  Due to the new hires and positions, we are getting 
close to the amount not to exceed and will most likely pass that amount before the end of 2016.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
BCSO recommends increasing the overall amount not to exceed $95,000 include WSST payable to Gall’s 
LLC dba/ Blumenthal for the procurement of employee uniforms and equipment, which is supported in the 
Sheriff’s Patrol and Custody approved 2015/2016 budgets.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Expenditures are included in the 2015/16 budget.  No budget adjustment necessary.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
k. Amending Resolution 2014-959 for Procurement of Employee Uniforms From Gall’s LLC



Orig: Sheriff’s Office 
cc:  Auditor, S. Araiza, Gall’s, LLC  
   Prepared by L. Small  

RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AMENDING RESOLUTION 2014-959 REGARDING THE PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF EMPLOYEE UNIFORMS – CLASS A AND 
OTHER RELATED ITEMS FROM GALL’S LLC FOR THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S 
OFFICE 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2014-959 dated December 2, 2014, the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners awarded the purchase agreement for the procurement of employee uniforms – Class A and 
other related items to Gall’s LLC dba/ Blumenthal for a two year contract with a Board authorized amount 
not to exceed $70,000 including WSST; and   
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend Resolution 2014-959, as the Benton County Sheriff’s Office is 
approaching the not to exceed amount of $70,000 including WSST that was originally authorized in 
Resolution 2014-959 for Class A uniforms and other related items; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office recommends increasing the overall amount not to exceed $95,000 include 
WSST payable to Gall’s LLC dba/ Blumenthal for the procurement of employee uniforms and equipment, 
which is supported in the Sheriff’s Patrol and Custody approved 2015/2016 budgets; NOW, 
THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, hereby 
concurs with the Sheriff’s Office recommendation and authorizes payment to Gall’s LLC dba/Blumenthal 
based on the rates outlined in the original purchase agreement attached to Resolution 2014-959 for an 
amount not to exceed $95,000 including WSST, which is supported in the Sheriff’s Patrol and Custody 
approved 2015/2016 budgets; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the term of the original contract commences January 1, 2015 and expires 
on December 31, 2016; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Resolution 2014-959 is hereby amended.  
 
 
 
 
Dated this    day of                , 2016 
 
         
 Chairman of the Board 
 

            
           Member

           
                      

Member 
    
Attest:  
                       Clerk of the Board 

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington  



AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: Aug. 16, 2016    
Subject: Consent to Assign Ltr.   
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: R. Lukson   

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract ____ _  
Pass Resolution  _____ 
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion _____  
Other  _____ 

Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 

Per Resolution 2015-928 dated December 22, 2015, the Board of County Commissioners entered into a Personal 
Service Contract with Universal Protection Service, LP for unarmed security guard services for the jail lobby and 
the Justice Center located in Kennewick, WA, for a two year contract terminating December 31, 2017. 

Benton County received notice that as of August 1, 2016, Universal Protection Service has merged with AlliedBarton 
Security Services to form Allied Universal for unarmed security guard services.   

Attached is a letter advising them that pursuant to Section 10.a. of the above referenced Contract, the County is 
consenting to the terms and conditions of our Contract being assigned to Allied Universal.    

RECOMMENDATION 

Benton County Sheriff’s Office recommends the Chairman of the Board sign the attached consent to assign letter 
addressed to Universal Protection Service LP. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

Ryan Lukson 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Terms and Conditions of the current contract shall remain the same as approved in Resolution 2015-928. 

MOTION 

Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
l. Letter to Universal Protection Service for Unarmed Security Guard Services



 
 

     
  

                                          
CERTIFIED MAIL 

 
August 16, 2016 
 
 
Mr. Chris Phillips, General Manager   
Universal Protection Service LP  
1551 North Tustin Avenue, Ste 560 
Santa Ana, CA 92705  
 
RE: Personal Service Contract between Benton County and Universal Protection Service LP. – 
Resolution 2015-928 
 
Dear Chris Phillips:  
 
Benton County has received notice that Universal Protection Service LP has merged with 
AlliedBarton Security Services as of August 1, 2016 to form Allied Universal for unarmed security 
guard services.  The purpose of this letter is to advise you that pursuant to Section 10.a. of the above 
referenced Contract, the County is consenting to the terms and conditions of our Contract being 
assigned to Allied Universal.  
 
Section 10.a. states:  
 
a. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the terms of this Contract using only its bona fide employees 

or agents, and the obligations and duties of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not be 
assigned, delegated, or subcontracted to any other person or firm without the prior express written 
consent of the COUNTY.  

 
Thank you for your attention to this matter.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
BENTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
Shon Small, Chairman  
Benton County Commissioner 
 
cc:   Steve Jones, CEO - Allied Universal       
       Tim French, Benton County Sheriff’s Office 
       Dan Meyer, Benton County Personnel Office 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 



 

Date: August 1, 2016 
To: Our Valued Clients 
From: Allied Universal Security Services 
Subj: Allied Universal Integration Update 
 
Dear Valued Client, 
 
In early May, we shared the exciting news with you that we would be merging AlliedBarton Security 
Services and Universal Services of America. We are excited to announce that as of today, we have 
officially combined two great companies to form Allied Universal. 
 
Our main objective is to ensure that there is NO DISRUPTION OF SERVICE to you during the 
integration process. 
 
We believe that there will be significant benefits to you, as our customer, as we integrate our 
operations: 

 Depth of expertise: combining the rich experience and technical expertise of the security 
professionals and training resources that exist across both companies 

 Increased density of resources: improved ability to provision resources to provide for your 
daily and emergency needs 

 Technology: improved effectiveness of our security resources through our technology 
solutions 

 Best practices: leveraging the best practices from these two world-class organizations 
 
Over the coming months, you will experience some minor changes, including: 

 Uniforms will migrate to a new Allied Universal uniform 

 Invoices and security professional paychecks will come from Allied Universal 

 Guard registrations and licenses will migrate to Allied Universal 
 

Your account teams will communicate to you when you can expect to see these changes. In the very 
short term, your account manager will be emailing you from a new email address structured similar 
to firstname.lastname@aus.com, beginning 8/5/2016. So please be on the lookout. However, for all 
email inquiries to specific departments (e.g. billing) please continue to use the legacy email 
addresses that you are currently using (e.g. billing@universalpro.com or billing@alliedbarton.com). 

Please reach out to your account team if you have any questions or concerns. You can also read 
more about the new Allied Universal in our attached press release. 

Sincerely, 

Allied Universal Security Services 
www.AUS.com  

http://www.aus.com/


 
 

 
New Allied Universal Officially Launched  

to Lead Security and Facility Services Industries 
 

Company will be co-headquartered in California and Pennsylvania 
 

Santa Ana, Calif., and Conshohocken, Pa., August 1, 2016—AlliedBarton Security Services 
and Universal Services of America today finalized the merger to form Allied Universal, a security 
services and solutions company. The new organization, with more than 140,000 employees, is 
the largest security services company in North America.  
 
Allied Universal, www.AUS.com, will maintain 
headquarters in Santa Ana, Calif., and 
Conshohocken, Pa., and is expected to have 
annual revenues of approximately $4.5 billion.  
 
Allied Universal provides unparalleled service, systems and solutions to serve, secure and care 
for the people and businesses of our communities. A commitment to understanding clients’ 
needs and aligning solutions with their goals will position Allied Universal as a resource for 
clients and integral element of their operations. Allied Universal’s new tag line – There for you. – 
is representative of this deep client commitment and also the organization’s dedication to 
creating better environments for clients’ stakeholders and every community where Allied 
Universal operates. 
 
―Allied Universal brings together two industry leaders, and combines best practices, leadership 
and expertise to provide even greater support to our clients and employees,‖ said Steve Jones, 
CEO, Allied Universal. ―Our shared commitment to the success of our clients and the 
development of lasting partnerships has created a seamless melding of purpose and cultures.‖ 
 
―The growth of this industry and the expanding need for safer and more secure environments in 
response to emerging threats is tremendous,‖ said Bill Whitmore, Chairman of the Board, Allied 
Universal. ―Through the continuous evolution of our business, we are positioned to help our 
clients succeed. Allied Universal combines high quality people and technology to deliver 
customized solutions to meet clients’ specific needs.‖  
 
―Allied Universal is poised to make an even more significant contribution to the advancement of 
the security and facility services industries,‖ Jones added. Jones had served as CEO of 
Universal Services of America and Whitmore had served as CEO of AlliedBarton.  
 
Along with Allied Universal Security Services, additional service lines include Allied Universal 
Security Systems, Allied Universal Janitorial Services and Allied Universal Staffing Services. 

http://www.aus.com/


Warburg Pincus and Wendel will be lead investors in Allied Universal with equal voting rights 

and Board representation; Partners Group and members of management will also have 

ownership interests in the combined company. The majority of the integration is expected to be 

completed by the end of first quarter 2017. 

David Darmon, Managing Director and CEO of Wendel North America, commented, ―We see a 
very compelling opportunity in the creation of Allied Universal. Two best-in-class companies, 
distinguished by strong leadership talent, have been combined to provide unmatched service 
and support to their clients and advance the security industry.‖ 
 
Chandler Joel Reedy, Managing Director of Warburg Pincus, commented, "We are excited to 
bring together two best-in-class management teams distinguished by strong leadership talent 
and proven track records. We look forward to our continued partnership with management to 
support the growth of the business.‖ 
 
About Allied Universal  
Allied Universal, a leading facility services company and the largest security force in North 
America with over 140,000 employees, provides unparalleled security services and solutions. 
With headquarters in Santa Ana, Calif., and Conshohocken, Pa., Allied Universal combines 
people and technology to deliver evolving, tailored solutions that allow our clients to focus on 
their core business. An unrelenting focus on clients’ success creates partnerships rooted in 
quality and value, and is supported by experience gained from being in business for over 50 
years. Through our people and leading services, systems and solutions…Allied Universal is 
there for you. For more information, please visit www.AUS.com. 

 
### 

 

 

http://www.aus.com/


 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 8-16-16      
Subject: CRID 21 Antinori 

Road 
Prepared by:         E Rivera  
Reviewed by: M Rasmussen   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract              _____ 
Pass Resolution                ___x_  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda            _x____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The County Road Improvement District #21 was established upon the Board’s adoption of Resolution 2012-066 and 
ordered improvements to the County Road known as Antinori Road.  The County Treasurer published notice that the 
assessment roll was in his hands for collection in the official newspaper of the County on March 18, 2016.   
 
 
The total amount of assessments paid in cash prior to the date of this resolution is $242,176.15, leaving $773,373.30 
as the unpaid balance of assessments on the assessment roll for CRID #21. 
 
The County has received an offer from Banner Bank of Kennewick, WA to purchase such bond.  The bond will mature 
on June 1, 2033 and bear interest at a fixed rate of 3.40% per annum, to the maturity or earlier redemption of the 
Bond. 
 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Request approval of Resolution on Consent Agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The County will issue the County Road Improvement District #21 Bond in the total principal amount of $773,373.30.  
The proceeds of the Bond will be used to repay interfund loans incurred to finance the costs of the improvements 
within CRID #21 and to pay the costs of issuance of the Bond. 

 
Assessments collected in CRID # 21 are pledged to the payment of the Bond and will be deposited into the Debt 
Service Fund upon receipt. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MOTION 
N/A 
 

WEH
Text Box
m. Issuance of a County Road Improvement District No. 21 Bond



 

-1- 
51495179.1 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-__ 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON: 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY ROADS, RE: ANTINORI ROAD — PROVIDING FOR THE 
ISSUANCE OF A COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 21 BOND IN THE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $773,373.30; FIXING THE DATE, FORM, MATURITIES, INTEREST 
RATE, TERMS AND COVENANTS OF THE BOND; APPROVING THE SALE AND PROVIDING 
FOR THE DELIVERY OF THE BOND; FIXING THE INTEREST RATE ON ASSESSMENT 
INSTALLMENTS FOR COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 21; AND PROVIDING 
FOR OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Benton County, Washington, as 
follows: 

. Findings and Determinations. The Board of County Commissioners (the 
“Board”) of Benton County Washington (the “County”), hereby makes the following findings and 
determinations: 

 The County is authorized and empowered to create road improvement 
districts and to conduct proceedings pursuant to chapter 36.88 RCW. 

 The Board adopted Resolution No. 2012-066 on January 31, 2012, which 
resolution established County Road Improvement District No. 21 (“CRID No. 21”) and ordered 
improvements to a county road commonly known as Antinori Road. The Board, by Resolution No. 
2016-191, adopted on March 8, 2016, duly confirmed the assessment roll for CRID No. 21 in the 
amount of $1,046,000.00, of which amount $30,450.55 represented assessments on land that 
was partially exempt from special assessments, leaving the amount of $1,015,549.45 to be 
collected from property owners. During the 10 days following the adoption of Resolution No. 2016-
191, no appeals were filed challenging the assessments levied on the property within CRID 
No. 21. 

 Pursuant to Resolution No. 2016-191, the County Treasurer caused notice 
that the assessment roll was in his hands for collection to be (i) published in the official newspaper 
of the County on March 18, 2016, and (ii) mailed on March 18, 2016, to the owners and reputed 
owners of property within CRID No. 21. The total amount of assessments paid in cash prior to the 
date of this resolution is $242,176.15, leaving $773,373.30 as the unpaid balance of assessments 
on the assessment roll for CRID No. 21. 

 Resolution No. 2016-191 specifies that assessments in CRID No. 21 are 
payable in 15 equal annual installments, together with interest thereon, commencing on April 18, 
2017. Resolution No. 2016-191 also requires that the interest rate on assessment installments for 
CRID No. 21 be fixed by this resolution. 

 The County is authorized to issue bonds for county road improvement 
districts, pursuant to chapters 36.88 and 39.46 RCW. The Board now desires to authorize the 
sale, issuance and delivery of a bond for CRID No. 21, and the County has received an offer from 
Banner Bank of Kennewick, Washington (the “Purchaser”), to purchase such bond. Such offer is 
subject to the terms and conditions of that certain commitment letter of the Purchaser dated 
August 9, 2016 (the “Commitment Letter”). 



 

-2- 
51495179.1 

 Pursuant to RCW 36.88.220 and Resolution No. 03-175, adopted by the 
Board on April 7, 2003, the County established the Benton County Road Improvement Guaranty 
Fund (the “Guaranty Fund”) for the purpose of guaranteeing the payment of the County’s road 
improvement district bonds and warrants. Said resolution also prescribed rules and regulations for 
the maintenance and operation of the Guaranty Fund.  

. Authorization and Description of the Bond. The County shall issue its 
County Road Improvement District No. 21 Bond (the “Bond”) in the total principal sum of 
$773,373.30. The Bond shall be dated as of the date the Bond is delivered to the Purchaser in 
exchange for the purchase price thereof (the “Delivery Date”), shall mature on June 1, 2033, shall 
be numbered R-1, and shall bear interest from the Delivery Date to the maturity or earlier 
redemption of the Bond, at a fixed rate of 3.40% per annum. Interest on the outstanding principal 
balance of the Bond shall be calculated on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed over a 
year of 360 days, and shall be payable annually on each June 1, commencing June 1, 2017, to 
the Maturity Date or earlier prepayment of the Bond. 

. Bond Registrar; Registration and Transfer of the Bond. 

 The County Treasurer has appointed the fiscal agent of the State (as 
designated by the State Finance Committee from time to time pursuant to chapter 43.80 RCW) 
to act as the County’s bond registrar, authenticating agent, transfer agent and exchange agent 
with respect to the Bond (the “Bond Registrar”). The Bond Registrar is authorized, on behalf of 
the County, to authenticate and deliver the Bond in accordance with the provisions of the Bond 
and this resolution, to serve as the County’s paying agent for the Bond and to carry out all of the 
Bond Registrar’s powers and duties under this resolution. The Bond Registrar shall be responsible 
for its representations contained in the Bond Registrar’s Certificate of Authentication on the Bond. 

 The Bond Registrar shall keep, or cause to be kept sufficient books for the 
registration and transfer of the Bond (the “Bond Register”), which books shall be open to 
inspection by the County at all times. The County and the Bond Registrar may deem and treat 
the owner of the Bond registered on the Bond Register (the “Registered Owner”) as the absolute 
owner of the Bond for the purpose of receiving payment of principal and interest, and for all other 
purposes, and neither the County nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the 
contrary other than proper notice of assignment or transfer of the ownership of the Bond on the 
Bond Register. 

 The Bond may be transferred only in whole and if endorsed in the manner 
provided thereon and surrendered to the Bond Registrar. No Registered Owner shall transfer the 
Bond to a subsequent investor unless that Registered Owner causes such investor to receive 
such information regarding the County, CRID No. 21, the Bond and the security for the payment 
of the Bond as is necessary to comply with Rule 10b-5 of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. Any such transfer shall be without cost to the Registered Owner or transferee (other 
than the costs incurred by the Registered Owner or transferee in preparing and delivering such 
transfer certificate) and shall be noted in the Bond Register. The Bond Registrar shall not be 
obligated to transfer the Bond during the 15 days preceding any installment payment or 
prepayment date. 

. Payment of the Bond. Both principal of and interest on the Bond shall be 
paid in lawful money of the United States of America, and shall be payable solely out of the Benton 
County Road Improvement District No. 21 Fund (the “Debt Service Fund”), which fund has been 
established pursuant to RCW 36.88.160, and from the Guaranty Fund. The principal of and 



 

-3- 
51495179.1 

interest on the Bond shall be paid by check, draft or electronic transfer of the Bond Registrar sent 
to the Registered Owner so that such Registered Owner receives said payments when due at the 
address appearing on the Bond Register. Upon receipt of the final installment payment of principal 
of and interest on the Bond, whether on the Maturity Date or upon prepayment, the Registered 
Owner shall present and surrender the Bond to the Bond Registrar to be destroyed or cancelled 
in accordance with law. If principal of the Bond is not paid when due, the County shall be obligated 
to pay interest on such overdue principal at the same rate provided in the Bond until such principal, 
together with interest thereon, is paid in full or until sufficient money for its payment in full is on 
deposit in the Debt Service Fund (or in a trust account established to refund or defease the Bond), 
and the principal represented has been called for payment by giving notice of that call to the 
Registered Owner. The Bond is not subject to acceleration upon the occurrence of a payment 
default. 

. Redemption Provisions. 

 The County shall redeem the principal of the Bond on any interest payment 
date to the extent there is sufficient money in the Debt Service Fund to pay such principal over 
and above the amount required for the payment of the interest due on such interest payment date. 

 Prior to June 1, 2026, the principal of the Bond shall be redeemed solely 
assessments collected within CRID No. 21. From and after June 1, 2026, the principal of the Bond 
may be redeemed from other money of the County legally available therefor and deposited in the 
Debt Service Fund (including proceeds of refunding bonds). 

 The County shall cause notice of any intended redemption of the principal 
of the Bond to be given not less than 10 nor more than 45 days prior to the date fixed for 
redemption by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of the Bond at the 
address appearing on the Bond Register at the time the Bond Registrar prepares the notice, and 
the requirements of this sentence shall be deemed to have been fulfilled when notice has been 
mailed as so provided, whether or not it is actually received by such Registered Owner. 

. Pledge of Assessment Payments. Assessments hereafter collected in 
CRID No. 21, together with interest and penalties, if any, are pledged to the payment of the Bond. 
The County shall deposit such assessments, interest and penalties into the Debt Service Fund 
upon receipt; provided, the County may use a portion of the interest collected on account of such 
assessments in the manner specified in Section 11 of this resolution. The Bond is payable solely 
out of the Debt Service Fund and the Guaranty Fund in the manner provided by law. The Bond is 
not a general obligation of the County. 

. Form and Execution of Bond. The Bond shall be prepared in a form 
consistent with the provisions of this resolution and State law and shall be signed by the Chair of 
the Board and the County Auditor, either or both of whose signatures may be manual or in 
facsimile. The Bond shall be printed at County expense and shall be delivered to the Purchaser, 
together with the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel regarding the Bond. 

The Bond shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose, or entitled to the benefits of this 
resolution, unless the Bond bears a certificate of authentication manually signed by the Bond 
Registrar stating: “This Bond is the fully registered County Road Improvement District No. 21 
Bond of Benton County, Washington, described in the Bond Resolution.” A minor deviation in the 
language of such certificate shall not void a certificate of authentication that otherwise is 
substantially in the form of the foregoing. The authorized signing of a certificate of authentication 



 

-4- 
51495179.1 

shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond so authenticated has been duly executed, 
authenticated and delivered and is entitled to the benefits of this resolution. 

If any officer whose manual or facsimile signature appears on the Bond ceases to be an 
officer of the County authorized to sign bonds before the Bond bearing his or her signature is 
authenticated or delivered by the Bond Registrar or issued by the County, the Bond nevertheless 
may be authenticated, issued and delivered and, when authenticated, issued and delivered, shall 
be as binding on the County as though that person had continued to be an officer of the County 
authorized to sign bonds. The Bond also may be signed on behalf of the County by any person 
who, on the actual date of signing of the Bond, is an officer of the County authorized to sign bonds, 
although he or she did not hold the required office on the date of issuance of the Bond. 

. Tax Covenants; Designation of the Bond as a “Qualified Tax-Exempt 
Obligation”. 

(a) Preservation of Tax Exemption for Interest on the Bond. The County 
covenants that it will take all actions necessary to prevent interest on the Bond from being included 
in gross income for federal income tax purposes, and it will neither take any action nor make or 
permit any use of proceeds of the Bond or other funds of the County treated as proceeds of the 
Bond at any time during the term of the Bond which will cause interest on the Bond to be included 
in gross income for federal income tax purposes.  

(b) Post-Issuance Compliance. The Board hereby adopts the post-issuance 
compliance policies and procedures for tax-exempt bonds attached hereto as Attachment A, 
which policies shall apply to the Bond and the County’s other outstanding bonds. 

(c) Designation of the Bond as a “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation.” The 
County designates the Bond as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” for the purposes of 
Section 265(b)(3) of the Code, and makes the following findings and determinations: (i) the Bond 
does not constitute a “private activity bond” within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code; (ii) the 
reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt obligations (other than private activity bonds and 
other obligations not required to be included in such calculation) that the County and any entity 
subordinate to the County (including any entity that the County controls, that derives its authority 
to issue tax-exempt obligations from the County, or that issues tax-exempt obligations on behalf 
of the County) will issue during the calendar year in which the Bond is issued will not exceed 
$10,000,000; and (iii) the amount of tax-exempt obligations, including the Bond, designated by 
the County as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for the purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code 
during 2016 is issued will not exceed $10,000,000. 

. Refunding or Defeasance of the Bond. The County may issue refunding 
bonds pursuant to State law or use money available from any other lawful source to carry out a 
refunding or defeasance plan, which may include (a) paying when due the principal of and interest 
on the Bond; (b) redeeming the Bond prior to its maturity; and (c) paying the costs of the refunding 
or defeasance. If the County sets aside in a special trust fund or escrow account irrevocably 
pledged to that redemption or defeasance (the “trust account”), money and/or government 
obligations (as defined in RCW 39.53.010) maturing at a time or times and bearing interest in 
amounts sufficient to redeem, refund or defease the Bond in accordance with its terms, then all 
right and interest of the Registered Owner of the Bond in the covenants of this resolution and in 
the funds and accounts obligated to the payment of the Bond shall cease and become void. 
Thereafter, the Registered Owner of the Bond shall have the right to receive payment of the 
principal of and interest on the Bond solely from the trust account and the Bond shall be deemed 



 

-5- 
51495179.1 

no longer outstanding. In that event, the County may apply money remaining in the Debt Service 
Fund to any lawful purpose. 

. Use of Bond Proceeds. The principal proceeds of the Bond shall be 
deposited into the Debt Service Fund and shall be used to repay interfund loans incurred to 
finance the costs of the improvements within CRID No. 21 and to pay the costs of issuance of the 
Bond. 

. Fixing Interest Rate on Assessments. Pursuant to Section 3 of Resolution 
No. 2016-191, the interest rate on the installments and delinquent payments of the special 
assessments in CRID No. 21 is fixed at the rate of 3.90% per annum. Any fee charged against 
CRID No. 21 by the County Treasurer pursuant to RCW 36.29.180 shall be paid from the interest 
received on assessments (but only to the extent such interest relates to the 0.5% difference 
between the County’s net interest cost and the interest rate fixed for the assessments in CRID 
No. 21). 

. Approval of Commitment Letter. The Purchaser has presented the 
Commitment Letter to the County, which Commitment Letter is on file with the Clerk of the Board 
and is incorporated herein by this reference. The Board finds that  accepting the terms of the 
Commitment Letter is in the County’s best interest and therefore accepts the offer contained 
therein and authorizes its execution (if necessary) by the Chair of the Board (or the Chair Pro-
Tem of the Board in the absence of the Chair). 

. General Authorization and Ratification. The Chair of the Board, the County 
Auditor, the County Treasurer, the Clerk of the Board, and other appropriate officers of the County 
are severally authorized and directed to take such actions and to execute such documents as in 
their judgment may be necessary or desirable to carry out the terms of, and complete the 
transactions contemplated by, this resolution and the Commitment Letter (including everything 
necessary for the prompt delivery of the Bond to the Purchaser and for the proper use of the 
proceeds of the sale thereof). All actions taken prior to the effective date of this resolution in 
furtherance of and not inconsistent with the provisions of this resolution are hereby ratified and 
confirmed in all respects.  

. Severability. The provisions of this resolution are declared to be separate 
and severable. If a court of competent jurisdiction, all appeals having been exhausted or all appeal 
periods having run, finds any provision of this resolution to be invalid or unenforceable as to any 
person or circumstance, such offending provision shall, if feasible, be deemed to be modified to 
be within the limits of enforceability or validity. However, if the offending provision cannot be so 
modified, it shall be null and void with respect to the particular person or circumstance, and all 
other provisions of this resolution in all other respects, and the offending provision with respect to 
all other persons and all other circumstances, shall remain valid and enforceable.  

. Effective Date of Resolution. This resolution shall be effective immediately 
upon its adoption. 



 

-6- 
51495179.1 

ADOPTED by the Board of County Commissioners of Benton County, Washington, at a 
regular open public meeting thereof, held on August 16, 2016. 

  
Chairman 

  
Chairman Pro-Tem 

  
Member 
Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 

Attest:   
Clerk of the Board 



 

51495179.1 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Cami McKenzie, Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners (the “Board”) of Benton 
County, Washington, hereby certify as follows: 

1. The foregoing Resolution No. 2016-16 (the “Resolution”) is a full, true and correct 
copy of the Resolution duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Board held at the regular meeting 
place thereof on August 16, 2016, as that Resolution appears on the minute book of the County, 
and the Resolution is now in full force and effect; and 

2. A quorum was present throughout the meeting and a sufficient number of members 
of the Board voted in the proper manner for the adoption of the Resolution. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
County on August 16, 2016. 

BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  
Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners 

(S E A L) 



 

A-1 
51495179.1 

Attachment A 

Benton County Board of County Commissioners  
Post-Issuance Compliance Policies and Procedures for Tax-Exempt Bonds 

1. Purpose. The purpose of these post-issuance compliance policies and procedures 
(“Compliance Policy”) for tax-exempt bonds issued by Benton County, Washington (the “County”) 
is to ensure that the County will be in compliance with requirements of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), that must be satisfied with respect to tax-exempt bonds and 
other obligations (“bonds”) after the bonds are issued so that interest on the bonds will be and 
remain tax-exempt. 

2. Responsibility for Monitoring Post-Issuance Tax Compliance. The Board of County 
Commissioners has the overall, final responsibility for monitoring whether the County is in 
compliance with post-issuance federal tax requirements for the County’s tax-exempt bonds. 
However, the Board of County Commissioners assigns to the County Treasurer (the “Treasurer”) 
the primary operating responsibility to monitor the County’s compliance with post-issuance federal 
tax requirements for the County’s tax-exempt bonds. 

3 Arbitrage Yield Restriction and Rebate Requirements. The Treasurer shall 
maintain or cause to be maintained records of: 

(a) purchases and sales of investments made with bond proceeds (including 
amounts treated as “gross proceeds of bonds under section 148 of the Code) and receipts of 
earnings on those investments; 

(b) expenditures made with bond proceeds (including investment earnings on 
bond proceeds) for the governmental purposes of the bonds, such as for the costs of purchasing, 
constructing and/or renovating property and facilities; 

(c) information showing, where applicable for a particular calendar year, that 
the County was eligible to be treated as a “small issuer” in respect of bonds issued in that calendar 
year because the County did not reasonably expect to issue more than $5,000,000 of tax-exempt 
bonds in that calendar year; 

(d) calculations that will be sufficient to demonstrate to the Internal Revenue 
Service (“IRS”) upon an audit of a bond issue that, where applicable, the County has complied 
with an available spending exception to the arbitrage rebate requirement in respect of that bond 
issue; 

(e) calculations that will be sufficient to demonstrate to the IRS upon an audit 
of a bond issue for which no exception to the arbitrage rebate requirement was applicable that 
the rebate amount, if any, that was payable to the United States of America in respect of 
investments made with gross proceeds of that bond issue was calculated and timely paid with 
Form 8038-T timely filed with the IRS; and 

(f) information and records showing that investments held in yield-restricted 
advance refunding or defeasance escrows for bonds, and investments made with unspent bond 
proceeds after the expiration of the applicable temporary period, were not invested in higher-
yielding investments. 



 

A-2 
51495179.1 

4. Restrictions on Private Business Use and Private Loans. The Treasurer shall 
educate and inform the heads of those departments of the County (the “users”) for which land, 
buildings, facilities and equipment (“property”) are financed with proceeds of tax-exempt bonds 
about the restrictions on private business use that apply to that property after the bonds have 
been issued, and of the restriction on the use of proceeds of tax-exempt bonds to make or finance 
any loan to any person other than a state or local government unit. In particular, following the 
issuance of bonds for the financing of property, the Treasurer shall provide to the users of the 
property (other than members of the general public, to the extent they have no contract or special 
legal entitlement to use the property) a copy of this Compliance Policy and other appropriate 
written guidance advising that: 

(a) “private business use” means use by any person other than a state or local 
government unit, including business corporations, partnerships, limited liability companies, 
associations, nonprofit corporations, natural persons engaged in trade or business activity, and 
the United States of America and any federal agency, as a result of ownership of the property or 
use of the property under a lease, management or service contract (except for certain “qualified” 
management or service contracts), output contract for the purchase of electricity or water, 
privately sponsored research contract (except for certain “qualified” research contracts), “naming 
rights” contract, “public-private partnership” arrangement, or any similar use arrangement that 
provides special legal entitlements for the use of the bond-financed property; 

(b) under section 141 of the Code, no more than 10% of the proceeds of any 
tax-exempt bond issue (including the property financed with the bonds) may be used for private 
business use, of which no more than 5% of the proceeds of the tax-exempt bond issue (including 
the property financed with the bonds) may be used for any “unrelated” private business use—that 
is, generally, a private business use that is not functionally related to the governmental purposes 
of the bonds; and no more than the lesser of $5,000,000 or 5% of the proceeds of a tax-exempt 
bond issue may be used to make or finance a loan to any person other than a state or local 
government unit; 

(c) before entering into any special use arrangement with a nongovernmental 
person that involves the use of bond-financed property, the County user must consult with the 
Treasurer, provide the Treasurer with a description of the proposed nongovernmental use 
arrangement, and determine whether that use arrangement, if put into effect, will be consistent 
with the restrictions on private business use of the bond-financed property; 

(d) in connection with the evaluation of any proposed nongovernmental use 
arrangement, the Treasurer should consult with nationally recognized bond counsel to the County 
as may be necessary to obtain federal tax advice on whether that use arrangement, if put into 
effect, will be consistent with the restrictions on private business use of the bond-financed 
property, and, if not, whether any “remedial action” permitted under section 141 of the Code may 
be taken by the County as a means of enabling that use arrangement to be put into effect without 
adversely affecting the tax-exempt status of the bonds that financed the property; and 

(e) the Treasurer and the County user of the property shall maintain records 
of such nongovernmental uses, if any, of bond-financed property, including copies of the pertinent 
leases, contracts or other documentation, and the related determination that those 
nongovernmental uses are not inconsistent with the tax-exempt status of the bonds that financed 
the property. 



 

A-3 
51495179.1 

5. Records to be Maintained for Tax-Exempt Bonds. It is the policy of the County that, 
unless otherwise permitted by future IRS regulations or other guidance, written records (which 
may be in electronic form) will be maintained with respect to each County bond issue for as long 
as those bonds remain outstanding, plus three years. For this purpose, the bonds include 
refunding bonds that refund the original bonds and thereby refinance the property that was 
financed by the original bonds. The records to be maintained are to include: 

(a) the official Transcript of Proceedings for the original issuance of the bonds; 

(b) records showing how the bond proceeds were invested, as described in 
3(a) above; 

(c) records showing how the bond proceeds were spent, as described in 3(b) 
above, including property purchase and construction contracts, progress payment requests, 
invoices, cancelled checks, payment of bond issuance costs, and records of “allocations” of bond 
proceeds to make reimbursement for project expenditures made before the bonds were actually 
issued; 

(d) information, records and calculations showing that, with respect to each 
bond issue, the County was eligible for the “small issuer” exception or one of the spending 
exception to the arbitrage rebate requirement or, if not, that the rebate amount, if any, that was 
payable to the United States of America in respect of investments made with gross proceeds of 
that bond issue was calculated and timely paid with Form 8038-T timely filed with the IRS, as 
described in 3(c), (d) and (e) above; and 

(e) records showing that special use arrangements, if any, affecting bond-
financed property made by the County with nongovernmental persons, if any, are consistent with 
applicable restrictions on private business use of property financed with proceeds of tax-exempt 
bonds and restrictions on the use of proceeds of tax-exempt bonds to make or financed loans to 
any person other than a state or local government unit, as described in 4 above. 

The basic purpose of the foregoing record retention policy for the County’s tax-exempt 
bonds is to enable the County to readily demonstrate to the IRS upon an audit of any tax-exempt 
bond issue that the County has fully complied with all federal tax requirements that must be 
satisfied after the issue date of the bonds so that interest on those bonds continues to be tax-
exempt under section 103 of the Code. 

6. Education Policy With Respect to Federal Tax Requirements for Tax-Exempt 
Bonds. It is the policy of the County that the Treasurer and the heads of those County departments 
for which land, buildings, facilities and equipment are financed with proceeds of tax-exempt bonds 
should be provided with education and training on federal tax requirements applicable to tax-
exempt bonds. The County recognizes that such education and training is vital as a means of 
ensuring that the County remains in compliance with those federal tax requirements in respect of 
its bonds. The County therefore will enable and encourage, to the extent the County can afford to 
do so, those personnel to attend and participate in the educational and training programs offered 
by, among others, the Washington Public Treasurers Association and the Washington Finance 
Officers Association with regard to the federal tax requirements applicable to tax-exempt bonds. 









Orig  Commissioners 
cc: Auditor, Public Services Administrator 

Prepared by Smith Kelty 

 RESOLUTION 
  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY BUDGETS RE: BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 2015-
2016 CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NO. 0000-101, DEPARTMENT 115, BUDGET IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $4,300,000 
 

WHEREAS, the Deputy County Administrator has requested a budget adjustment to the Current 
Expense Budget (Fund No. 0000-101, Department No. 115) in the amount of $4,300,000 because 
on January 26, 2016 the Public Services Administrator was authorized to hire Meier Architecture and 
Engineering to complete design and construction documents for the re-roofing of 5 buildings located 
at the Justice Center Campus:  Old Courts, New Courts, Jail, Coroner and Health District. Re-Roofing 
Project.  Then on June 21, 2016 the Public Services Administrator was then authorized to proceed 
with advertising for bids from qualified Contractor's for this project; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on Tuesday, August 16, 2016, at 9:00am at which time the 
public was given an opportunity to speak in favor or in opposition to the proposed adjustments; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds said adjustments to be in the best interest of the citizens of Benton 
County; NOW THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
that the budget adjustments to the 2015-2016 Current Expense Budget (Fund No. 0000-101, 
Department No. 115), in the amount of $4,300,000, be approved per the attached request. 
 
Dated this_______________ day of ________________, 2016. 
 

______________________________            
Chairman of the Board 

 
  

 ______________________________                
Member 

 
 

 ______________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
 
Attest....................................................... 
              Clerk of the Board 
 

WEH
Text Box
Budget Adjustment to Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 115 ~ L Smith Kelty



Commissioners' Date Stamp:

Fund Name: Fund Number: 0000101
Dept Name: Non-Departmental Dept Number: 115

Request Summary
Expenditure Additional Revised

BARS Number Amount Budget

597.100.0017 T/O to Capital Project Fund 4,300,000                 4,300,000

Total Adjustment $4,300,000

Revenue
BARS Number Amount

000101.291.74.0001 4,300,000                 

Total Revenue $4,300,000

Basis for Budget Adjustment (Attach Documentation as Appropriate):

Commissioners
o Approved for Hearing

o Denied

CHAIRMAN

Review Notes:  

COMMISSIONER

COMMISSIONER

On January 26, 2016 the Public Services Administrator was authorized to hire Meier Architecture and Engineering to

complete design and construction documents for the re-roofing of 5 buildings located at the Justice Center Campus: Old

Courts, New Courts, Jail, Coroner and Health District. Re-Roofing Project. On June 21, 2016 the Public Services

Administrator was then authorized to proceed with advertising for bids from qualified Contractor's for this project.  

TRANSMITTAL
REQUEST FOR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

Current Expense

Item Name

Item Name

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance



WEH
Text Box
Budget Adjustment to Fund No. 0155-101, Dept. 000 ~ M Rasmussen







 

AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: Aug. 9, 2016         
Subject: Social Media Strategy 
Prepared by: Shyanne Faulconer 
Reviewed by:                  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  _____  
Pass Ordinance             _____ 
Pass Motion  _____  
None   __x  _ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion                x__ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____ 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Benton County currently does not have a social media strategy in place to provide guidelines to employees 
for social media use on behalf of the County. This strategy is created to ensure that those involved in social 
media are all on the same page and that incidents are avoided. A brief overview of the strategy will be 
provided in this presentation as well as a copy of the strategy document. No action is needed on this 
presentation. 
 
 

SUMMARY 
The main goal of the County having a general social media account is to increase its participation with the 
community, increase transparency, and open up new forms of communication between government officials 
and the people they serve. Having a social media presence allows Benton County to further interact and 
engage with the community and the people we serve, as well as enabling the County website to be more 
interactive and effective for our visitors. Giving the public a way to interact with the County in this way 
encourages residents to share County content on their personal social media as well as directly engage with 
the County.  
 
The County currently has a limited social media presence that is largely on Facebook. However, few of the 
Facebook pages are maintained on a regular basis. By consolidating some of the inactive pages with the 
general County page, the public will be able to more easily access information and the County will be seen 
in a more consistent way.  
 
Staff has been developing a social media strategy to respond to a changing communication landscape and 
this is the opportunity to share with the Board the developments and work that has been done. 
 
There are a process of steps to achieve a successful social media experience: 

1. Define the Audience 
2. Find the Right Platform 
3. Goals and Objectives 
4. Strategy and Implementation 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
Social Media Strategy ~ S Faulconer



REV 25 JULY 2016 

  

BENTON COUNTY: 
SOCIAL MEDIA 
STRATEGY 
2016 

Strategy and implementation guide for Benton County social media presence. 

Benton County Commissioners 

620 Market St., Prosser, WA 99350 

Tel (509) 786-5600 
www.co.benton.wa.us 

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/


TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Contents 
Why Social Media? _______________________________________________________________________________________ 1 

Benton County Vision for Social Media _______________________________________________________________ 1 

Why Have a Strategy and Guidelines? ________________________________________________________________ 1 

Types of Content _______________________________________________________________________________________ 1 

Building the Benton County Brand ___________________________________________________________________ 1 

Current Social Media Presence __________________________________________________________________________ 2 

Existing Pages, Platforms, and Updates ______________________________________________________________ 2 

Review & Recommendation ___________________________________________________________________________ 2 

Public Records __________________________________________________________________________________________ 2 

Step 1: Defining Our Audience __________________________________________________________________________ 3 

Who Are We Wanting to Target? ______________________________________________________________________ 3 

Different Platforms Can Be Used to Target Different Groups _______________________________________ 3 

The Benton County Audience _________________________________________________________________________ 3 

Step 2: Find the Right Platform _________________________________________________________________________ 4 

Facebook ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 4 

Twitter __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 4 

LinkedIn ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 4 

Recommendation ______________________________________________________________________________________ 4 

Step 3: Goals & Objectives _______________________________________________________________________________ 5 

Goal 1 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5 

Goal 2 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5 

Goal 3 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5 

Goal 4 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5 

Goal 5 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5 

Step 4: The Strategy & Implementation ________________________________________________________________ 6 

Why Implement This Strategy? _______________________________________________________________________ 6 

Who Will Implement this Strategy? ___________________________________________________________________ 6 

Recommendation ______________________________________________________________________________________ 6 

The Strategy ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 6 

Timeline __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 7 



WHY SOCIAL MEDIA? 

Benton County Social Media Strategy         Page 1 
 

Why Social Media? 

BENTON COUNTY VISION FOR SOCIAL MEDIA 

Having a social media presence allows Benton County to further interact and engage with the 

community and the people we serve, as well as enabling the county website to be more 

interactive for our visitors. Adding “share” buttons to the County website, which connect to the 

related social media page, gives the public an opportunity to show their support or concern 

regarding the various items found in the website.  

 

Giving the public the ability to interact with us in this way encourages residents to share County 

content on their personal social media sites and to directly engage with the County and various 

other sectors. By embracing the use of social media, even its most basic form, Benton County 

increases its participation in the community, its transparency, and its collaboration, opening up 

new forms of communication between government and the people it serves. 

WHY HAVE A STRATEGY AND GUIDELINES? 

Because of the nature of social media – to encourage sharing and conversation – it is integral that 

the County develops clear guidelines for social media use to ensure that everyone involved is on 

the same page and that violations are avoided. 

TYPES OF CONTENT 

Depending on the platform, there are various messages that can be conveyed using social media. 

Some examples include:  

 Meeting dates, times, and basic information (i.e. public hearings) 

 Updates about new programs, parks, etc. that the public has shown interest in 

 Photos and videos of meetings, hearings, park renovations, building updates, etc. that can 

show the public where their tax dollars are going 

 One-on-one videos with Commissioners to provide general updates about the county 

 Tweets and posts on new job openings 

BUILDING THE BENTON COUNTY BRAND 

There are many aspects that play into developing a social media strategy and implementation 

plan. A large part of that includes the development of a standard brand that can be used 

throughout the organization. As with any other form of communication, consistency is key to 

building trust within the community, remaining transparent, and being easily recognizable. A 

standardized logo is the first step to building the brand. 



CURRENT SOCIAL MEDIA PRESENCE 

Benton County Social Media Strategy Page 2 

Current Social Media Presence 

EXISTING PAGES, PLATFORMS, AND UPDATES 

**This page is a bi-county representative and may require bi-county efforts to update the page. 

Pages highlighted in blue are general county pages that were started in June 2016. 

REVIEW & RECOMMENDATION 

Currently, the County departments that have a social media presence are largely on Facebook. 

None of these pages are “verified” (meaning that someone has taken the time to make the page 

official) and many haven’t had any updates for months. That being said, in order to effectively use 

social media, the County must develop a strategy to effectively use various platforms.  

PUBLIC RECORDS 

Benton County online public records are managed by Smarsh Archiving Solution. This entity is 

able to keep 24/7 public records retention on social media platforms such as Facebook, Twitter, 

LinkedIn, Instagram and more, as well as email and instant messaging. More information about 

public records retention, archiving, and schedules can be found the Benton County Social Media 

Policy & Procedure document (release TBD). 

DEPARTMENT PLATFORM LIKES/FOLLOWERS LAST POST/UPDATE 

Benton County, WA Government Facebook 30 July 26, 2016 

Benton County GIS Facebook 27 June 8, 2016 

Benton County Information Technology Facebook N/A (Private Acct) June 1, 2016 

**Benton-Franklin Counties Juvenile Justice Center Facebook 52 January 2, 2015 

Benton County Office of Public Defense Facebook 1 None 

Benton County Solid Waste Facebook 30 October 1, 2015 

Benton County Animal Control Facebook 4644 July 21, 2016 

Benton Auditor Facebook 323 July 20, 2016 

Benton County Parks Facebook 190 July 8, 2016 

Benton Auditor Twitter 407 July 19, 2016 

Benton County, WA Twitter 16 July 21, 2016 

Benton County District Court LinkedIn 4 None 

Benton County Superior Court LinkedIn 2 None 

Benton County Assessor’s Office LinkedIn 2 None 

Benton County Auditor LinkedIn 2 None 

http://www.facebook.com/BentonCountyWA
https://www.facebook.com/BentonCountyGIS
https://www.facebook.com/Benton-County-Information-Technology
https://www.facebook.com/Benton-Franklin-Counties-Juvenile-Justice-Center-755361474528553/
https://www.facebook.com/Benton-Franklin-Counties-Office-of-Public-Defense-385180181671323/
https://www.facebook.com/Benton-County-Solid-Waste-312932425441484/?fref=ts
https://www.facebook.com/Benton-County-Animal-Control-201802603170067/?ref=br_rs
https://www.facebook.com/bentonauditor/?fref=ts
https://www.facebook.com/Benton-County-Parks-280931818706700/?fref=nf
https://twitter.com/bcauditor
http://www.twitter.com/BentonCo_WA
https://www.linkedin.com/company/5478189?trk=vsrp_companies_res_name&trkInfo=VSRPsearchId%3A2889656361465590427509%2CVSRPtargetId%3A5478189%2CVSRPcmpt%3Aprimary
https://www.linkedin.com/company/4670289?trk=vsrp_companies_res_name&trkInfo=VSRPsearchId%3A2889656361465590427509%2CVSRPtargetId%3A4670289%2CVSRPcmpt%3Aprimary
https://www.linkedin.com/company/8530505?trk=vsrp_companies_res_name&trkInfo=VSRPsearchId%3A2889656361465590427509%2CVSRPtargetId%3A8530505%2CVSRPcmpt%3Aprimary
https://www.linkedin.com/company/5573918?trk=vsrp_companies_res_name&trkInfo=VSRPsearchId%3A2889656361465590581934%2CVSRPtargetId%3A5573918%2CVSRPcmpt%3Aprimary


STEP 1: DEFINING OUR AUDIENCE 

Benton County Social Media Strategy         Page 3 
 

Step 1: Defining Our Audience 

WHO ARE WE WANTING TO REACH? 

The most important part of developing a social media strategy is figuring out who the target 

audience is. This can be specific or broad, but it is very important to know who these people are 

in order to effectively reach them where they are at. In the digital world we live in, people don’t 

seek out information as much as they expect it to be there for them with minimal research or 

digging. That’s where social media comes in. 

DIFFERENT PLATFORMS CAN BE USED TO TARGET DIFFERENT GROUPS 

Twitter is a live-update platform, LinkedIn is largely used by professionals and companies to 

share business-oriented information with one another, and Facebook is a personal sharing, 

collaborative platform. Blogs are another type of social media, which can be used as an 

organization-run news source. 

THE BENTON COUNTY AUDIENCE 

The Benton County audience is primarily the residents of Benton County, but can also be targeted 

to other government agencies, local businesses and organizations, job seekers, and individuals 

who want to learn more about what the county is doing. Based on existing platforms and target 

audience, Facebook and Twitter would be the best first step into social media to reach the target 

audience of the County. 



STEP 2: FIND THE RIGHT PLATFORM 

Benton County Social Media Strategy         Page 4 
 

Step 2: Find the Right Platform 

There are various social media platforms that the County could use to engage with the public. The 

most commonly used in government agencies are Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn, and blogs. Below 

is a brief overview of each of these platforms and the pros/cons of each, ending with a 

recommendation on which platform(s) would be best for Benton County. 

FACEBOOK 

Facebook is one of the most widely recognized social media platforms, and would be an easy 

platform to manage when just starting out. One strength of Facebook is that it is widely used by 

varying groups of the community. However, younger generations are starting to move away from 

this platform because it isn’t the newest, hottest platform in the mix. 

TWITTER 

Twitter is a faster, continuous, real-time platform. This platform allows users to post real-time 

updates to their followers using 140 characters or less.  The character limit can be tricky, since it 

is easy for information to be misunderstood with such little information available. Twitter can be 

used with greater frequency on a daily basis. This platform is ideal for providing constant updates 

on trending topics and County information. 

LINKEDIN 

LinkedIn is typically used to target professional groups, and helps to build professional 

networks/relationships and to collaborate with others. This platform has fewer users and is more 

targeted to working professionals, as well as being less interaction-based. Many organizations 

use LinkedIn to post job openings, though most don’t actively use it to promote ideas, programs, 

or events. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Facebook and Twitter would be the easiest to implement in the beginning – they are very similar 

platforms (in terms of content and set up) that are easily integrated. LinkedIn would be an ideal 

platform to incorporate within six months to a year.  



STEP 3: GOALS & OBJECTIVES 

Benton County Social Media Strategy         Page 5 
 

Step 3: Goals & Objectives 

GOAL 1 

Develop and adopt a Benton County social media strategy and policy 

 Objective 1: Identify key individuals for development and implementation of social media 

GOAL 2 

Increase the County’s participation in social media and the public. 

 Objective 1:  By end of June, have Benton County Facebook and Twitter accounts in place. 

By end of July, begin weekly content posting/scheduling 

 Objective 2: Begin discussions on how best to implement County brand consistency, 

including potentially merging smaller pre-existing Facebook pages into the Benton 

County page 

GOAL 3 

Build the County brand and image. 

 Objective 1: Implement consistent logo/brand on social media by end of 2016 

 Objective 2: Merge some of the smaller pre-existing Facebook pages with the new general 

County page and set up editors from those departments by the end of September 2016 

GOAL 4 

Maintain a consistent and coherent message between platforms and other County offices. 

 Objective 1: Ensure that messages sent via Facebook and Twitter are consistent and 

coherent – check before every post to ensure that they’re not duplicates or 

counterintuitive to one another 

GOAL 5 

Be a good partner to other local organizations and County entities by sharing their content and 

interacting with their pages. 

 Objective 1: Share content from other County pages/City pages/local organizations once 

per day to maintain rapport with partners 



STEP 4: THE STRATEGY & IMPLEMENTATION 

Benton County Social Media Strategy         Page 6 
 

Step 4: The Strategy & Implementation 

WHY IMPLEMENT THIS STRATEGY? 

It is essential that all staff and elected officials understand the goals and purpose of having a 

County social media presence – maintaining a high level of transparency and accountability with 

the public is a key function of the County, especially for elected officials. By having a social media 

presence, Benton County will be able to further involve the community in the decision-making 

process and receive valuable feedback. 

WHO WILL IMPLEMENT THIS STRATEGY? 

The Community Programs and Public Relations (CPPR) Coordinator will be the main point of 

contact for the social media accounts. However, multiple people throughout various departments 

(i.e. Commissioners, Personnel, Public Works, Parks, etc.) could contribute content. Content could 

be posted by these individuals directly, or could be sent to the CPPR Coordinator to post; a variety 

of content is essential to maintaining public interest 

RECOMMENDATION 

Have one person from selected departments provide the CPPR Coordinator with content on a 

weekly basis or as needed. 

THE STRATEGY 

As outlined in the timeline on the next page, there are a few key steps to implementation: 

 August – September:  

o The Benton County Commissioners review and adopt social media strategy  

o Schedule content to go out on a weekly/daily basis (at least 1x day) 

o Set up other departments to begin scheduling their posts for events or 

happenings, merge smaller pages if applicable 

 October – December:  

o Maintain weekly/daily updates on Facebook and Twitter – post at least 2x day 

o Set up a LinkedIn account (to be used for job posting and business resources) 

o Post updates 2x week on LinkedIn 

 Throughout the process, respond to questions and concerns from the public as they are 

presented – reply to comments and be engaged and responsive. 



TIMELINE 

Benton County Social Media Strategy         Page 7 
 

Timeline 
This timeline is intended to serve as an approximation, and subject to change at any time.  

 

AUGUST 

 1: Begin scheduling content to go out 1x weekly (plus 1 share/retweet) 

 15: Begin to aim for daily sharing/retweeting (sharing 1 post/tweet per day will help us 

build our page by having more content as well as being a good community partner) 

 30: Have small Facebook pages merged with general page and administrators in place 

from those departments (if approved by I.T., archiving company, and departments) 

 30: Analyze performance on each platform and send updates to officials monthly 

SEPTEMBER 

 1: Begin training one person from other departments to begin posting weekly 

updates on projects, job openings, or meetings/events open to the public 

 15: Begin 2x/day posting on each platform 

 30: Analyze performance on each platform and send updates to officials/supervisors 

OCTOBER 

 Maintain daily/weekly posting schedules for Facebook and Twitter 

 30: Analyze performance on each platform and send updates to officials/supervisors 

NOVEMBER 

 Maintain daily/weekly posting schedules for Facebook and Twitter 

 30: Analyze performance on each platform and send updates to officials/supervisors 

DECEMBER 

 Maintain daily/weekly posting schedules for Facebook and Twitter 

 1: Set up LinkedIn account for the County 

 1: Aim to post 2x week on LinkedIn (job updates, business resources) 

 30: Analyze performance on each platform and send updates to officials/supervisors 



BENTON COUNTY:
SOCIAL MEDIA 
STRATEGY AND POLICY 



The Main Goal:
To become a community resource for 
information, increase Benton County’s 
participation with the community, increase 
transparency, and open up new forms of 
communication between government 
officials and the people they serve.



Why Social Media?

❏ Encourage interaction and sharing

❏ Spread important messages quickly

❏ Increase transparency of County

❏ Further develop and build the County brand to 

become more easily recognizable in the community

❏ Bring County communications into the 21st Century 

and connect with people where they are



Current 
Social 
Media 
Presence
As of July 21, 2016, the County 

departments that have a social 

media presence are largely on 

Facebook. None of these pages are 

“verified” (meaning that someone 

has taken the time to make the 

page official) and many haven’t had 

recent updates.

Department Platform Followers Last Update

Benton County GIS Facebook 27 6/8/16

Benton County Information Technology Facebook N/A 6/1/16

Benton-Franklin Counties Juvenile Justice Center Facebook 52 6/2/15

Benton County Office of Public Defense Facebook 1 None

Benton County Solid Waste (will be merging) Facebook 30 10/1/15

Benton County Animal Control Facebook 4644 7/21/16

Benton Auditor Facebook 323 7/20/16

Benton County Parks Facebook 190 7/8/16

Benton Auditor Twitter 407 7/19/16

Benton County District Court LinkedIn 4 None

Benton County Superior Court LinkedIn 2 None

Benton County Assessor’s Office LinkedIn 2 None

Benton County Auditor LinkedIn 2 None

https://www.facebook.com/BentonCountyGIS
https://www.facebook.com/Benton-County-Information-Technology
https://www.facebook.com/Benton-Franklin-Counties-Juvenile-Justice-Center-755361474528553/
https://www.facebook.com/Benton-Franklin-Counties-Office-of-Public-Defense-385180181671323/
https://www.facebook.com/Benton-County-Solid-Waste-312932425441484/?fref=ts
https://www.facebook.com/Benton-County-Animal-Control-201802603170067/?ref=br_rs
https://www.facebook.com/bentonauditor/?fref=ts
https://www.facebook.com/Benton-County-Parks-280931818706700/?fref=nf
https://twitter.com/bcauditor
https://www.linkedin.com/company/5478189?trk=vsrp_companies_res_name&trkInfo=VSRPsearchId:2889656361465590427509,VSRPtargetId:5478189,VSRPcmpt:primary
https://www.linkedin.com/company/4670289?trk=vsrp_companies_res_name&trkInfo=VSRPsearchId:2889656361465590427509,VSRPtargetId:4670289,VSRPcmpt:primary
https://www.linkedin.com/company/8530505?trk=vsrp_companies_res_name&trkInfo=VSRPsearchId:2889656361465590427509,VSRPtargetId:8530505,VSRPcmpt:primary
https://www.linkedin.com/company/5573918?trk=vsrp_companies_res_name&trkInfo=VSRPsearchId:2889656361465590581934,VSRPtargetId:5573918,VSRPcmpt:primary


The Steps to Get There
STEP 1: Defining the Audience
In today’s digital world, people often do not 
seek out information - they expect it to be 
there for them with minimal research or 
digging. This is why the audience must be 
defined and targeted.

STEP 2: Finding the Right Platform
Facebook, Twitter, and LinkedIn are different 
platforms that serve different purposes:
❏ Facebook: Widely used, large audience
❏ Twitter: Live-stream updates on the go
❏ LinkedIn: Networking for professionals

STEP 3: Goals & Objectives
Five main goals with related, measurable 
objectives to be completed within the course 
of the first year after implementation. 
Overall message: be a community resource 
for information and integrity.

STEP 4: The Strategy & Implementation
The strategy will be implemented throughout 
the course of 2016 and revised for the 2017-
2018 biennium. The Community Programs & 
Public Relations Coordinator will oversee the 
implementation of the strategy and policy.



Social Media Policy

Purpose: To define the social media policy for Benton 
County and to address the fast-changing landscape of 
online communications

Policy: Personal vs. Professional Use, Applicability, Terms of 
Service, Copyright Law, Content Management, Public 
Records Law and applicable Records Retention Schedules.

Procedure: Implementation of new Facebook and Twitter 
Accounts, Records Retention Schedules



WEH
Text Box
Request for Approval to Use 2163 Funds for Kennewick Housing Authority Nueva Vista Project ~ K Sullivan



AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: August 16, 2016      
Subject: US Marshal 

Intergovernmental 
Agreement 
Modification 

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X   _ 
Pass Resolution  __X__ 
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion _____  
Other  _____ 

Consent Agenda           _X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 

Per Resolution 2014-756 dated October 14, 2014, the Board of Benton County Commissioners entered 
into an Intergovernmental Agreement No. 85-03-0031 with United States Marshal Service (USMS) for 
the housing of federal detainees at the Benton County Jail Facility. 

The Benton County Sheriff’s Office currently is transporting USMS federal detainees to and from 
Spokane County Jail and Yakima County Jail, which is encompassed in the per diem rate of $80.00 per 
inmate per day, however, is not accurately reflected in the current agreement.   

The attached modification is for the purpose of adding Benton County Jail will provide jail to jail 
Guard/Transportation services to and from Spokane County Jail and Yakima County Jail, at its sole 
discretion, to the current Intergovernmental Agreement.   Said transport movements are to only be 
performed on USMS prisoners housed at the Spokane County Jail and Yakima County Jail.   

USMS is requesting the County sign the attached modification prior to obtaining their signature.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the attached Resolution and Intergovernmental Agreement Modification between Benton 
County and United States Marshals Service for the purpose of adding jail to jail Guard/Transportation 
services to and from Spokane County Jail and Yakima County Jail, at its sole discretion, to the current 
agreement.  

APPROVED AS TO FORM  

Ryan Lukson  

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact.  

MOTION 

Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
Agreement Modification w/United States Marshals Service for Housing Federal Detainees ~ J Law



Original: Sheriff’s Office                                                                                                                                                  L. Small 
CC: Auditor; S. Araiza; USMS 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD TO SIGN 
THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT MODIFICATION BETWEEN UNITED 
STATES MARSHALS SERVICE AND BENTON COUNTY FOR THE HOUSING OF 
FEDERAL DETAINEES AT THE BENTON COUNTY JAIL FACILITY  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2014-756 dated October 14, 2014, the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement No. 85-03-0031 with United States 
Marshal Service for the housing of federal detainees at the Benton County Jail Facility; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2015-255 dated March 31, 2015, the Board of County Commissioners 
approved Agreement No. 85-03-0031 Modification between Benton County and United States 
Marshal Service for the purpose of adding Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) and the 
Affordable Care Act (ACA) to the current Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the United States Marshal Service provided the Sheriff’s Office with the attached 
written Modification for the purpose of adding jail to jail Guard/Transportation services to the 
current Intergovernmental Agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, Benton County Jail will be transporting to and from Spokane County Jail and 
Yakima County Jail, at its sole discretion. Transport movements are to only be performed on 
USMS prisoners housed at the Spokane County Jail and Yakima County Jail; and  
 
WHEREAS, said jail to jail Guard/Transportation services are encompassed in the current per 
diem rate of $80.00 per inmate per day, and this amendment is meant to clarify the existing 
understanding between the parties’, as it is not accurately reflected in the current agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Jail Commander has reviewed the proposed Modification and recommends 
moving forward with the attached Agreement Modification for the purpose of clarifying the 
existing understanding that Benton County Jail will provide jail to jail Guard/Transportation 
services to and from Spokane County and Yakima County, at its sole discretion, in the current 
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 85-03-0031; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 
hereby approves the attached Agreement No. 85-03-0031 Modification between Benton County 
and United States Marshals Service for the purpose of adding Benton County Jail will provide jail 
to jail Guard/Transportation services to and from Spokane County and Yakima County, at its sole 
discretion, to the current Intergovernmental Agreement, as further outlined in the attached 
Modification; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, said jail to jail Guard/Transportation services are encompassed 
in the current per diem rate of $80.00 per inmate per day; and  



Original: Sheriff’s Office                                                                                                                                                  L. Small 
CC: Auditor; S. Araiza; USMS 

 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached 
Agreement No. 85-03-0031 Modification.  
 
 
Dated this ________day of ___________, 2016 
 
 
 
        
 Chairman of the Board 

          
             

            Member                        
           

             
                 Member 

 
Attest:  
                       Clerk of the Board 




	CA - Facilities b.pdf
	Agenda action sheet for SMS Landscape
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY

	resolution for SMS Landscape
	RESOLUTION

	BENTON COUNTY CONTRACT
	Exhibits A_F
	Landscape RFP_ Exhibit A
	RFP for Landscape including addendum_ Exhibit B
	Landscape RFP_ Exhibit A
	ADDENDUM TO RFP DOCUMENTS_Landscape

	sample insurance form_Exhibit C
	Bkgrnd Check Form_Exhibit D
	SMS Response to RFP_Exhibit E
	Response Sheet Landscape and Lawn Maint. RFP
	Response Sheet for Addendum 1
	Benton County Scope of Work

	Weekly Calculations Sheet_Exhibit F

	resolution for SMS Landscape.pdf
	RESOLUTION


	CA - Sheriff l.pdf
	Allied Universal Security Services Client Letter and News Release.pdf
	20170801 Allied Universal Security Services Client Letter
	Allied Universal Merger Close - Press Release - FINAL - No Vorticomm Info


	CA - Treasurer m.pdf
	Agenda Action Item-Comm Cover Page to Resolution
	Benton County CRID 21 Bond Resolution
	Benton Co CRID 21 Bond - Bank Commitment Letter




